1)

2)
3)
4)

5)
6)

7)
8)

9)

AGENDA FOR THE COUNCIL MEETING OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
HELD AT THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES NJ
JUNE 25, 2018
EXECUTIVE SESSION BEGINS AT 7:00
PUBLIC SESSION BEGINS AT 8:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER AND OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT STATEMENT — Mayor

This meeting is being held in compliance with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act, P.L. 1975, Ch. 231. It
was properly noticed and has been posted, and certified by the Clerk. Notice of this meeting has heen sent to The
Citizen, the Morris County Daily Record and The Star Ledger and posted on the bulletin board in the municipal
building.

ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE - Clerk
FLAG SALUTE — Mayor

R109-18, RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO AN EXECUTIVE SESSION
Matters of Litigation: Assessment appeals

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
a)} Assisted Living zoning proposal

REPORTS OF BOROUGH ESTABLISHED BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES

PUBLIC COMMENT
Please state your name and address for the record. Each speaker is limited to one (1) comment of no more than
five {5) minutes and no yielding of time to another person.

BOROUGH COUNCIL DISCUSSION ITEMS

10) ATTORNEY’S REPORT
11) MANAGER’S REPORT
12) ORDINANCES

a) Introduction
1. Ordinance 4-18, Capital Bond Ordinance
BOND ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING $1,178,200, AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $791,540 BONDS OR
NOTES OF THE BORQUGH, FOR VARIOUS IMPROVEMENTS OR PURPOSES AUTHORIZED TO BE UNDERTAKEN
BY THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES, IN THE COUNTY OF MORRIS, NEW JERSEY
2. Ordinance 5-18, Salary Ordinance
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 2018 MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEE SALARIES
b) Adoption
1. None

13) *CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Matters listed as Consent Agenda Items are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion of the Council and
one roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member requests an item be ~
removed for consideration.

14) *RESOLUTIONS

R110-18, Authorization to pay bills
R111-18, Authorizing a contract with McNerney & Associates Inc. for property assessment for B5 L1
1




AGENDA FOR THE COUNCIL MEETING OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
HELD AT THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES NJ -
JUNE 25, 2018
EXECUTIVE SESSION BEGINS AT 7:00
PUBLIC SESSION BEGINS AT 8:00 PM

R112-18, Authorizing a membership with the NJ State Firemen’s Association
R113-18, Authorizing Liquor License Renewals

R114-18, Authorizing a Tax overpayment for 12 Baldwin Lane

R115-18, Authorizing a Tax overpayment for 69 Lookout

R116-18, Authorizing a Chapter 159 Budget Amendment for a Town Club grant
R117-18, Authorizing a Tax overpayment for 17 Park Place

R118-18, Authorizing a Tax overpayment for 92 Lake Drive

15) *APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Regular Minutes
May 30, 2018,{All eligible}

16) *BOARD, COMMITTEE AND COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS
17) *APPROVAL OF REPORTS FOR FILING (reports are included only if checked)
Construction Department
[l Department of Public Works
Fire Department
L] Heaith Department
Police Department
X Recreation Department
X1 Code Enforcement/Property maintenance report

18) COUNCIL REPORTS

19) PUBLIC COMMENT
Please state your name and address for the record. Each speaker is limited to one {1) comment of no more than
five (5) minutes and no yielding of time to another person.

20) NEXT STEPS AND PRIORITIES
21) ADJOURNMENT




UNLOCKING POTENTIAL
IN PLACES YOU LOVE

40 Union Stireel, #1N
NMewark, NI 07105

Memorandum

DATE: June 18, 2018
TO: Mountain Lakes Borough Council
FROM: Philip Abramson, AICP, PP & Golda Speyer

SUBJECT: 1 Old Bloomfield Avenue — Block 118.04 / Lot 2.01
Proposed Zoning Change / Assisted Living

. INTRODUCTION

Topology was retained by the Borough of Mountain Lakes (“the Borough”) to evaluate
the existing zoning of the above-captioned property and assess a development proposal
for an assisted living facility. The proposal described herein implements a specific
recommendation contained in the Borough's Housing Plan adopted by the Mountain
Lakes Planning Board on March 24, 2016. To that end, the purpose of this memorandum
is three-fold:

1. Provide background and describe legal process: summarize recommendations
contained in the Housing Plan and describe the Borough Council’s role in its
implementation. This includes a summary of the ordinance amendment process
and a description of the respective roles and responsibilities of both the
governing hody and the planning board.

2. Assess existing conditions and proposed development: provide an overview of
the Property, neighborhood context and current development proposal. The
purpose of this analysis is to determine if proposed conditions necessitate
specific zoning provisions or parameters,

3. Provide recommendations: describe a zoning strategy that implements Housing
Plan recommendations specific to the property while also mitigating against
potential negative impacts.

Generally speaking, and after careful review of the conditions on-site and nearby
properties, it appears a viable opportunity for new private investment and o create
additional affordable housing units in the Borough. As will be more fully described
herein, the anticipated negative impacts of the proposal are minimal and those that
have been identified can be mitigated through a transparent planning process and
thoughtfully crafted zoning mechanisms.

li. BACKGROUND AND LEGAL PROCESS

The proposed assisted living facility at 1 Bloomfield Avenue was recommended in the
Borough’s Housing Element and Fair Share Plan {the “Housing Element”) as a key
mechanism to meet the municipality’s affordable housing obligation. More specifically,

e hello@topology.is w  http://topology.is p 973 370 3000




the Property is projected to create five (5) units that could be applied to meet the
Borough’s overall affordable housing obligation of 17 units®,

The Property is zoned OL-2 {Office and Light Industrial), which does not permit assisted
living facilities. However, the Housing Element states, “[t]he Borough intends to modify
the current zoning so as to permit an assisted living facility.” Modification of a zoning
ordinance in New Jersey must be undertaken through a very specific process.

in accordance with the Municipal Land Use Law (NJSA 40:55D-1 et seq.}, the governing
body {Borough Council) is charged with adopting amendments to the zoning ordinance.
Generally speaking, the following steps are required as part of the statutory process:

e Zoning ordinance is “introduced” (i.e. first reading} by the governing body
during a regular Borough Council meeting. As part of this introduction, the
Ordinance is also referred to the planning board for their assessment of
whether the proposed regulation is inconsistent with the master plan.

e The planning board, at a noticed public meeting, may adopt a report that
identifies any inconsistencies with the master plan, recommendations
concerning those inconsistencies, or any other matters they deem appropriate.
The planning board’s report must be transmitted back to the governing body
within 35 days of referral. Fatlure of the planning board to do so within 35 days
shall relieve the governing body of this obligation.

e Public hearing is then held by governing body (i.e. second reading). Any
property owners within 200’ of a zone proposed to be amended must be
notified by certified mail and notice must be published within the newspaper of
record unless amendments are specifically recommended as part of a8 master
plan re-examination. Members of the public must be given an opportunity to
address the Council. In addition, the governing body, by a vote of its majority by
full authorized membership, may disapprove of any recommendations made by
the planning board concerning master plan consistency.

Given that the proposed ordinance amendment will originate with the governing body,
the following sections provide a planning assessment of the property, the use, and any
potential negative impacts and associated mitigative measures.

1. EXISTING CONDITIONS AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The property located at 1 Bloomfield Avenue, Block 118.04, Lot 2.01 {“the Site”)
encompasses approximately 5.82 acres of undeveloped fand. The property is situated
off U.S. Route 46 amongst other office, business/commercial, and light industrial uses.

1 pyrsuant to Fair Share Housing Center, Mountain Lakes has a “realistic development potential”
{RDP) of 17 units and an unmet need of 33 units,

e hello@topology.is w  hitp:/ /topology.is p 973370 3000




The property abuts an adjacent townhome neighborhood within 200" to the north. This
neighborhood consists of medium-density residential development at a higher elevation
than the proposed Site. Furthermore, there is an existing vegetation buffer between the
Site and the residential neighborhood north of the two-way access road. The Site is
situated at the southeastern end of the Borough bordering Parsippany-Troy Hills
Township. The OL-2 zone permits a variety of commercial uses, but does not include
assisted living facilities.

Figure 1: Existing Zoning and Surrounding Neighborhood

Source. NJ Geographic brformatien Nebvork [r—— ¥ Fest
o 185 370 140
TORPO
ﬂil"!: . g P i |
L QGY ?“"]rzoo Bufer ¢ Block 118.4, Lot 2.01 [ — Mignicipai Boundary

The Borough was recently provided with a proposal by Sunrise Senior Living {(hereinafter
“Sunrise”), an international developer and operator of over 320 facilities. In the
Borough, Sunrise proposes to construct a three-story assisted living facility containing 90
units and gross floor area of approximately 27,800 square feet. Of the 90 units, ten-
percent {10%) will be set-aside as Medicaid beds, which would help meet the
municipality’s affordable housing obligation. The design documents provided by Sunrise
are attached hereto as Appendix A.

e hello@topology.is w  hitp://topology.is p 973370 3000




An assessment of the proposed amendments is contained at the end of this
memorandum,.

V. INITIAL RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations specific to the property, while mitigating against
potential negative impacts, should be considered in order to further the Housing
Element:

a. Create an overlay zone: in a manner that is consistent with past practice in the
Borough, create an overlay zone on top of the specific parcel that permits
assisted living uses. This offers flexibility in development and avoids unintended
consequences of a district-wide zoning amendment while mitigating potential
negative impact.

b. Establish conditional use standards within an overlay: provide conditional use®
standards for an assisted living facility:

= DEFINITION: Assisted living residence means a facility licensed by the
New Jersey Department of Health and Senior Services to provide
apartment-style housing and congregate dining and to assure that
assisted living services are available when needed for four or more aduit
persons unrelated to the proprietor. Apartment units offer, at a
minimum, one unfurnished room, a private bathroom, a kitchenette and
a lockable door on the unit entrance.

s LICENSING: The facility should be licensed by the N.J. Department of
Community Affairs as a Class C rooming and boarding home or by the
N.l. Department of Health as an assisted living residence.

s AGE RESTRICTION: The assisted living facility shall not limit residence to
persons of a certain age.

= OCCUPANCY STANDARDS: at least 10% of the units should be set aside
as affordable housing.

¢. Bulk standard parameters: In addition to minimum operations contained
above, additional zoning standards are also proposed. The proposed zoning
standards would have two basic functions: (1) to constrain the applicability of
the assisted use in the OL-2 zone (i.e. increased minimum lot size) and {2} to
provide relaxed zoning standards for this particular use that would eliminate the
need for variance relief:

2 conditional uses are thase which are only “permitted” in a given zoning district based upon the
satisfaction of certain circumstances set forth in the ordinance. When the proposal satisfies
these stated conditions, the use is considered a “permitted use.”

e hello@topology.is w  htip:/ /topology.is p 973370 3000




Table 1: Comparative Bulk Chart: OL-2 Zone to Proposed Conditional Use Standard
of Assisted Living Facility in Overlay Zone

Zohing Paramefers OL-2 District Proposed
Existing Standard Conditicnal Use
Standard
Area Minimum 5 acres 5 acres
Minimum Frontage 400’ 350
Minimum Depth 400’ 400°
Front Setbock 80'* 50
Side Setback 50" 4 50
Rear Sethack 100" 4 150’ §
Maximur Height 35'/2 stories 50'/3 stories
Maximum Building 30% 30%
Coverage
improved Maximum 60% 60%
Coverage
Parking Requirement RSIS Standard 1 space per 2 units
Parking Setback Front: 20 Front: 20" Q&
Side: 50" g Side: 20" &
Rear: 100’ Rear: 100’ %
Site Design Consideration - There shall be a 100/
landscape buffer
abutting residential
areas ot zones excluding
pre-existing drives.
Building architecture
shall be residential in
character to include
gable roof lines,
dormers and a mix of
exterior materials.

*: L andscaped area of not less than 20’ along right-of-way, except for driveways.

-+ There shall be ¢ 100’ landscaped buffer abutting residential areas or zones.

& Side and rear setbacks may be reduced from 100' to 50’ along nonresidentiol boundaries.
& Rear setbacks may be reduced from 150’ to 100" along nonresidential boundaries.

% Porking setbacks may be reduced from 100’ to 20” along nonresidential boundaries.

d. Assessment of potential negative impacts: in accordance with the master plan,
negative impacts should be assessed in order to “guide the use of lands within
the municipality in @ manner which protects public health and safety and
promotes the general welfare®.” Therefore, when amending a zoning ordinance,
the following anticipated negative impacts of the Sunrise proposal may include:

3 Cox & Koenig, New Jersey Zoning & Land Use Administration (GANN, 2018)

e hello@topology.is w  http://topology.is p 973370 3000




e Consideration of intensity controls;
& Loss of existing trees due to new construction; and
= Visual impact with the nearby residence.
Each of these potential impacts can be alleviated as addressed below:

" Intensity controls: the governing body may want to consider
incorporating additional “intensity controls” as part of the conditional
use framework. This could include a limitation on “bed count” per acre
or similar mechanism. In order to provide flexibility for credit towards
the Council of Affordable Housing (COAH), the Borough should consider
a bed count between 90 to 120 units.

= |oss of existing trees: Sunrise should provide a tree survey, tree
preservation plan, and an arborist on-site during the construction
period ta ensure adherence to the tree preservation plan, which
overtime creates preservation mechanisms to ensure vegetation is
protected in perpetuity. Furthermore, the Sunrise proposal should be in
accordance with Chapter 102, Article Vil of the Mountain Lakes
Preservation and Protection of Trees Code.

®  Visual impact: Sunrise should consider the finished grading around the
residence vs. the grading around the Site in order to ensure elevation of
buildings are comparable. Additionally, the Borough should consider
mechanisms such as 3D mass-modeling to determine if building massing
should be incorporated, such as Floor-Area Ration (FAR).

When considering the visual impact of the Site adjacent to the
residential neighborhood, a site cross-section analysis was considered
{Appendix B). The 3-story Sunrise proposal reaches peak elevation at
406, whereas the nearest 2-story residential building on Sherwood
Drive reaches peak elevation at 400’. This 6’ difference is because the
grading of the Sunrise proposal begins at a 358’ elevation, whereas the
nearby residential grading begins at a 370’ elevation (i.e. 12’ higher).
Thus, the Sunrise proposal and the nearby residential are relatively at
the same elevation height. Furthermore, the residence on Sherwood
Drive will be situated approximately 280’ from the proposed Sunrise site
building and buffered with existing dense vegetation at an elevation up
to 410°.

Based on this analysis of the Sunrise proposal, the potential negative impacts an
the surrounding neighborhood can be manageable.

e. Additional considerations: the Housing Plan presumes that there will be a 10%
set aside for Medicaid beds to be credited as age-restricted rental units. In order

e hello@topology.is w  hitp:/ /topology.is p 9733703000




to conform better to COAH credits, Topology recommends fo not restrict the age
of its residents at Sunrise.

All prior approvals from the 2010 subdivision resolution should be taken into
consideration during site plan, which include: no clear cutting or removal of a
significant number of trees or of any trees of significant size would be undertaken,
an approved landscape plan remain in place at time of development, and all
existing and new plantings continue to be maintained on an ongoing basis,
Additionally, a set-aside affordable housing component should be considered as
a conditional use standard of an assisted living facility. Lastly, consideration of the
proposed architectural style {e.g. American Craftsman) should be considered
during site plan.

Topology intends to present the contents of this memo publicly at the June 25,
2018 hearing of the Borough Council. In the meantime, questions or comments
from council members are welcome and will be considered for incorporation
prior to public presentation.

e hello@topology.is w  http://topology.is p 973 370 3000




et LT,

Tvemd LTy

Appendix A — Suririse Proposal Design Plan

SUNRISE OF
MDUNTAIN LAKES

hremt
ity Freve, Ty

W

i SUNRISE

SENITR LIVING

VOLUME 1
Progross Print

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

P2.01

pr——




] A
o)

>~
A ST -
YU SNIAVED 7 - o
o = NPNULE RO IO LT K,
] ] PR g
P [ e G| st
S e RN ——
- - p- —— ran ~
oy bl | = s o
e | == o
x e *
e TSP O =
AR A t T
ATSA00 RO 3 %
vl Mearsaran
NIVAROON 20 ILONCGUOT m stnz.nag )
g w0
9T [ RS
FORIIIOONG — — Lt — n —
[P
ST1ONIA et st
o s .,..rli...i. o ot e
s e wmmAn  sewc——
VLIS HOTVIV —=T— £ =
TS LV TVNTINT I3 e GOAHOT@E v ——
pestin
o —

i

feo o) IPTIREIE
e aa S5

—_— s

B
|

it o €1 i
[P e P

oriars,
ONITVOT QNY ONDN Y

)

P ]
e Ul

e SLr N AT e QLIRSS
O oo AL PSR LTI Vi LR od 28 o N

e

14 RO LY el ety

o SRR S
o
- e wn - .4 At e "'
T R
o | | e Jaemon]
S e e = P
- o T = peme—
I At S A O S =T
N e I o
e e
e T e
AR =
TTYILLSNAN THOIT ANV 300N 2710 ANCE
SINEWTINCTY AL 4O FTAVL

cxcrmray
o i i s ML LI Y P M %

SELON TYSaRI0




— Cross-Section

ix B

Append

PRLLIMINARY A%ID PINAT.
MAROR TTE LA

on
SUNRUFE SENTOR
LIVING, LLG

PLOCK Hmsd
LaT 104

BOWOUGL OF MOUNTAR




Appendix C — 2010 Subdivision

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES PLANNING BOARD

RESOLUTION

Application No. 09-238
1 Bioomfield Avenue

Block 118.04, Lot
-OL-2 Zone

WHEREAS, GIM Mountain Lalkes Investors, LLC ("Applicant") has applied to
the Planning Board of the Borongh of Mountain Lakes (the "ﬁoard") for minor
subdivision approval, together with variance relief, with respect to propeity located at 1
Bloomfield Avenue (Block 118.04, Lot 2 on the Tax Map), Mountain Lakes, New Jersey
(the "Sﬁbject Property"); and

WHEREAS, é.pubiic hearing was commenced oﬁ November 19, 2009, and
concluded on January 28, 2010, during which hearing Applicant's submissions were
reviewed by the Board, testimony was provided on behalf of Applican, the Applicant's
attorney advanced arguments in connection with the application, and the Board's
consultants and members of the public were given an opportunity to comment on the
application; and

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Applicant's submissions with.res;:ect to
the minor subdivision and variance relief presented for approval, the testimony and

argument in support thereof, the comments and suggestions of the Board's consultants




NQOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Board of the Borough
of Mountain Lakes that, based upon the foregoing, the following findings of fact and
conclusions of law are made:

1. Applicant Ais the owner of the Subject Property located at 1 Bloomfield
Avenue and designated Block 118.04, Lot 2 on the Tax Map of the Borough of Mountain
Lakes.

2., The Subject Property is a single parcel of approximately 12.56 acres
fronting (as a "comer lot") on Bloomfield Avenue and Intervale Road.

3. The easterly portion of the Subject Property is presently dewlaloped with a
two story office building and associated parking. At the time of the approval for that
development, the long range plan for the Subject Property was to permit a second office
building to be constructed on the westerly portion of the Subject Property. Between the
two portions where office development was to take pl.ace, a single shared access drive
was installed serving, initially, the office building on the easterly portion of the Subject
Property and an Qfﬁce building located on the adjoining Lot 1 (Block 118.04}, providing
private access by way of the drive to the rear of that adjoining property, rather than
access by way of direct driveway off Bloomfield Avenue.

4. Applicant proposes to subdivide the Subject Property into two lots,
designating them for purposes of the application "Proposed Lot 2.01" and "Proposed Lot
2.02",

5. The present office building -and associated parking on the easterly portion

of the Subject Property would be located on Proposed Lot 2.02. Proposed Lot 2.01 (the




present Westerly_portioﬁ of the Subject Property) is and would, for the time being, rerain
a mostly wooded, unimproved lot.

6. The present paved 2-way access drive serving the developed portion of the
Subject Property and Lot 1, by way of an access easement, is to remain where it is
presently physically located. It will run along most of the easterly boundary of Proposed
Lot 2.01 and will be physically located entirely within Proposgd Lot 2.01. Anew
.easement document benefiting both Proposed Lot 2.02 and Lot '1', addressing ingress,
egress, utilities, maintenance, and related issues, will have to be prepared and recorded,
superseding the present access easement.

7. The proposed subdivision would result in two (2) lots conforming with all
bulk and dimensional standards applicable to the OL-2 Zone, except for the following:

a. Front sethack of existing office building on proposed Lot
2.02 (71.2 feet, rélative to 80 feet required) - permitted by previously
granted variance; .

b. Parking stall count on proposed Lot 2.02 (201 provided,.
relative to 250 required) - permiited by previously granted variance;

c. Front yard parking setback on proposed Lot 2.02 (46.05
feet, relative to 50 feet required) - permitted by previously granted
Variance; |

d. Side yard parking setback on proposed Lot 2.02 (9.1 feet,
relative to 50 feet required) - resulting from lot line being struck to create

the subdivision;




e. Inadequate road frontage for Proposed Lot 2.01 (366.98

feet, relative to 400 feet required) - resulting from the subdivision. |

8. Applicant requested a number of checklist waivers, mostly relatiﬁg to
matters pertinent to development of Proposed Lot 2.01, which is not being undertaken.
At present, only the creation of a 5.87 acre unimproved lot is being sought. At such time
as development is fo be undertaken, a site plan ai)plication would be required and the
omitted checklist items would come back into play, as pertinent. The Board concluded
that if the requested variances were to be granted such grant would need to be on
condition of there being no vsigniﬁcant tres removal from Proposed Lot 2.01 at this time
(prior to evaluation in connection with a site development application). |

0. Applicant provicied a Minor Subdivision Plan prepared by Omland
Engineering Associates, Tnc, (1 sheet) dated July 23, 2009 (the "Plan”). The Plan
depicted the proposed subdivision line dividing the easterly from westerly portions of the
Subject Property. Proposed Lot 2.01 (the undeveloped lot) would have an area of 5.87
acres and would include the existing shared access driveway along the majority of its
easterly boundary, then durving 1o the west and running parallel to the northerly boundary
of Proposed Lot 2.01 to serve adjoining Lot 1. Proposed Lot 2.02 would have an area of
6.68 acres and would contain the existing two story office building with its related
parking, It would continue to be served by the same shared access driveway.

10. A variance granted in 1999 with respeot to the Subject Property allowed
development of the existing office building with 201 parking stalls, This was less than
fhe number of parking stalls required under the zoning ordinance. This condition will

continue on Proposed Lot 2.02, but will not be relevant or pertinent to the issue of




parking on Proposed Lot 2.01 at such time as an application for development of that lot is
prosecuted.

11.  Applicant's engineer testified that the proposed lot geometry - and
resulting variances - reflects Applicant's effort to have the lots as regulatly shaped as
practicable with no physical changes in site appearance or function, relative to that which
would have obtained had a second office building been proﬁosed for the westerly portion
of existing Lot 2 (development permitted under the prior approvals).

12.  Applicant's engineer further testified that except for the deficiency in
frontage of Proposed Lot 2.01, he believes that lot will be realistically developable in
conformity with ordinance standards. |

13.  The Board discussed limitations on clearing of Proposed Lot 2.01.
Applicant indicated walking trails might be created in the waoded lot, but Applicant
agree;d that no clear cutting or removal of a significant number of trees or of any trees of
~ significant size would be undertaken.

14, TheBoard discussed the condition and adequacy of the buffer and visual
screening between the rear drive along the northerly portion of Proposed Lot 2.01 serving
adjoining Lot 1 and the adj oi_ﬁing residential neighbors to the north. A number of

" neighbors also expressed concerns about this. Applicant returned to the continued
hearing with a proposed landscape plan along the northerly property line to address this
issue.

15.  Members of the public offered continued concerns about the buffer and

| landscape planting area. These were explored in further discussion of the proposed

landscape buffer plan.




16. Applicanf provided a Landscape Buffer Plan (1 sheet) prepared by
Omland Engineering Associates, Inc. dated January 14, 2010 (the "Landscape Buffer
Plan™), presented to the Board at its January 28 hearing to show the proposed screen and
buffer along the northerly property line of Proposed Lot 2,01, including existing
vegetation and additional planiings. Applicant aclcuowledged and agreed that a landscape
plan will be required for the entire tract at. such time as a development plan is submitted
for Proposed Lot 2.01. |

17. Applicanf‘s landscape architect testified that the proposed plantings would
enhance the buffer acsthetically and that its fanctionality would be mmproved. He
testified that existing vegetation, including earlier "temporary plantings”, would be
rehabilitated and replanted, as needed. He agreed that all plantings - existing and new -
will have to be properly maintained on an ongoing basis.

18.  Applicant's landscape architect further testified that the replanting and the
new plantings would be accomplished at appropriate planting times in the spring, and
would be completed by June 30, 2010.

19.  Neighboring residential owners made a nurober of suggestions and
comments, particularly with respect to buffers aloﬁg the northern property line of
Proposed Lot 2.01, as well as suggestions relating to the northetly property line of Lot 1
(which property is not presently before the Board). The Applicant indicated that these
would be taken under advisement as the Applicant proceeded with the Subject Property
and its potential development. The Board pointed out that the Applicant was already
doing more to address the subject than might normally be required in connection with a

subdivision of property not involving any construction or improvements.




20.  Aside from the side yard parking setback resulting from the imposition of
the proposed subdivision line itself, the only new varjance required with respect to the
creation of two separate lots is that relating to inadequate road frontage of Proposed Lot
2.01. The road frontage proposed in this subdivision totals 366.98 feet. This is less than
the required 400 foot minimum.

21.  The side yard parking setback variance required for Proposed Lot 2.02 is
the result of the imposition of the subdivision line. Neither the parking nor the access
drive are being relocated in any regard from théir present locations.

22.  Though the road frontage on Proposed Lot 2.01 is not in conformity with
the presen£ zoning ordinance, the required frontagé is maintained on Proposed Lot 2.02
(measured to the midpoint of the curve forming the corner of Bloomfield Avenue and
Tntervale Road). From a potential development point of view, including appearance,
impacts, etc., the likely development at some time of Proposed Lot 2.01 will not be
different in any meaningful regard from the development which would have been
permitted in any event on the westerly portion of the Subject Property under prior
approvals, |

23.  The other existing nonconformities (front setback of existing office
building, parking stall count, and front yard parking setback all on Proposed Lot 2.02) are
all the subj ects of prior variance approval and grant at the time of the development plan
for the Subject Property which resulted in the construction of the existing office building.
None of these conditions changes in any regard or is affected in any fashion by the
imposition of the subdivision line. To the extent that these may be deemed “intensified”

the Board finds that confirming grants of technical variances would be appropriate.




-

24.  The newly created side yard parking setback deficiency impacts only the
shared driveway and thé impact is the same with or without the minor subdivision. Asto
the deficient road frontage of _Proposed Lot 2.01, it was observed that several other
properties in proximity to the Subject Property have frontage of less than 400 feet. The
reduced frontage on Proposed Lot 2.01, under these circumstances, haé little impact. Any
such impact can be addressed to the extent necessary at the tlime of a development
a]j..)plication for Proposed Lot 2.01

25.  The Board concludes that, based upon the foregoing, the subdivision can
be approved and that the variances sought can, with appropriate conditions, be granted
without substantial detriment to the public good and without substantially impairing the
intent and purpose of the zone plan and zoning ordinance. r

| 26.  With the requested variance relief, and subject to the conditions of this
Resolution, this Application conforms with the requirements for granting minor
subdivision approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Application by GIM Mountain Lakes
Tnvestors, LLC for approval of a minor subdivision, dividing the present Lot 2, Block
118.04 as shown on the Plan desc-:ribed above prepared by Omland Engineering
Associates, Inc., into two lots (designated on the Plan as Proposed Lots 2.01 and 2.02,
and with landscape buffer plantings as shown on the referenced Landscape Buffer Plan,
together with variances for 366.98 feet of road frontage for Proposed Lot 2.01 and 2 0.1
foot side yard setback for parking on Proposed Lot 2.02, fo gether w1th reconfirming the
technical yariances for the existing and continuing conditions of a 71.2 foot front yard

setback for the existing office building on Proposed Lot 2.02, a parking stall count of 201




for the said existing office building, and & 46.5 foot front yard parking setback for
parking related to the said existing office building, as described in the Board's findings
and conclusions, be and hereby are granted and app'roveti subject to the following
conditions:

1. Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses or other approvals
which may be required in connection with this Application or in connection with the
landscaping to be undertaken on the Subject Pfoperty, whether required from any
municipal, county, state or federal béard, body or agency baving juriédiction over the
same.

2. All taxes and municipal charges, together with fees and escrow relating to

this Application and the project shall be fully paid by Applicant.

3. Applicant shall confirm or obtain proper Lot designations for the new Lots
from the Borough Tax Assessor. | |

4. Applicant shall prepare minor subdivision deed(s) for the lots designated
Proposed Lot 2.01 and Proposed Lot 2.02 and shall reference therein the 1999
development and variance approvals, the March 2009 and October 2009 sign approvals,
and the approval of this minor subdivisionlby the Mountain Lakes Borough Planning
Board, the adoption of this Resolution, and the conditions of approval set forth herein.
The subdivision deed(s) shall be submitted to the Planning Board Attorney and the
Borough Engineer for approval as to form and content. When any conditions precedent
have been. satisfied, the deed(s) shall be en&orsed by the Planning Board and returned to
Applicant for recording and such other processing as is required by the Municipal Land

Use Law.for.pelfecting the minor subdivision. Applicant shall submit a copy of the




recorded minor subdivision deed(s) to the Planning Board Secretary promptly after the
same is/are recorded in the Morris County Clerk's Office.

5. A new access easement reflecting the shared use of the access driveway by
the property designated Proposed Lot 2.01, Proposed Lot 2.02 and Lot 1 (all in Block
118.04), superseding the present rights of the parties (an easement crossing present Lot 2
for the benefit of Lot 1), including provisions for ingress, egress and utilities, together
with appropriate maintenance and control provisions to assure safe use of the access drive
by all partiés, shall be prepared and submitted to the Planning Board Attorney and
Rorough Engineer for approval as to form and content. After such approval, the
Applicant shall record the new Access Rasement/Agreement in the office of the Morris
County Clerk, simultaneous with, but following, the recording of the minor subdivision
" deed(s). Applicant shall submit a copy of the recorded Access Easement/Agreement to

the Planning Board Secretary promptly after the same is recorded in the Morris County

. Clerk's Office.

6. Applicant shall install visual screening and buffer plantings as shown on
the Landscape Buffer Plan and as described to the Board at the Janmary 28, 2010 hearing,
This shall include restofation and replanting, as necessary, of existing vegetation
(including the ”témp orary plantings" previously instailed by Applicant), ‘as well as the
new plant material described and depicted in connection with Applicant's Landscape
Buffer Plan. In addition, Applicant shall submit a maintenance pla;n for the approval of
the Borough Engineer Which.sha]l detail the proper maintenance of all vegetation in the

buffer area on an ongoing basis. The landscape planting shall be undertaken at

10




appropriate planting times duﬂnglthc_a 2010 planting season and shall be completed by
June 30, 2010.

7. Applicant shall confirm comphanoe with, or exemption from, the COAH
Scarce Resource Order to the satisfaction of the Borough Attorney.

8. Applicant shall be responsible for fees, if any, in connection with
Affordable Housing obligations resulting from this subchwsmn approval.

9. The minor subdivision decd(s) shall not be endorsed by the Planning
Board until the satisfaction of conditions 1, 2 (current), 3, 4 (as to approved document), 5
(as to approved document), 6, 7, and 8 (if applicable).

10. | The variance limitation and condition imposed in 1999 with respect to the
number of parking stalls for the office building presently located on the easterly portion |
of the Subject Property and to be located on the lot designated Proposed Lot 2.02 shall
continue in full force and effect with respect to parking for that building on the new lot
created. This parking will not be perfinent to any future development of the designated
Proposed Lot 2.01. |

11,  Any future site plan application with respect to proposed development on
the lot designated Proposed Lot 2.01 will be judged on its own merits, with no necessary
ability for its applicant to obtain any further variance relief beyond the frontage variance
included in this bsubdivision approval.

12.  There shall be no clear cutting or removal of a significant number of trees
or of any trees of significant size from the property designated Proposed Lot 2.01, until
such time as any such action is evaluated in connection with a site plan for that Lot.

13, Since the shared access drive is alreédy located in proximity to the

11




northerly property line of the Subject Property, the Board and Applicant dici not address
the applicability of the requirement for a 100 foot planted buffer where commercial
development abuts residential' developmen.t.‘ Aﬁplica.nt was advised, nevertheless, that
the subject would be appropriately addressed in connection with any development
application for the newly created lot presently designated Proposed Lot 2.01.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution, adopted this 25th day of
March, 2010, memorializes the action of the Board, as set forth above, taken at its regular

meeting on January 28, 2010.

The Vote: 3-0

In Favor: Lewis, Nachshen, Kane

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the
Planning Board of the Borough of Mountain Lakes at its regular public meeting held on

March 25, 2010.

Cynthia Shaw, Secretary
Borough of Mountain Lakes
Planning Board

L\Mountain Lakes Planning Board\Resolutions\G?M Mountain 1.akes Tnvestors, LLC (subdivision).doc

12




Appendix B ~Landscape Plan

Frlpko §79 105 Sog 3. ivtmaoy R AW Pl Sag Botler dug Pt HOI010 S 204 ARL ndealadir, 1212820

3 raam e a1

e

52 A s by e bty

@mﬂmmﬁm@
AN o m

SORCUSH OF MOBNTAIN LAKES

SHERWOOD RRIVE

7 ke et 1)

i

w

QRS WAL,

ST I o T VL W L AR Y aAa

LANDSCAPE DUFFER LAY

MOUNTAIN LAKES |
LOT 2 BLOCK 110.04
P

3
T

)




Appendix D — March 22, 2018 Memo

CrrisTing A. COFONE, PP, AICP
Principal

COroNE CONSULTING GROUP, LLC
PLANNING MEMO

TO: MARCD. POLICASTRO. ESQ.

FROM: CHRISTINE A. NAZZARO-COFONE, AICP, PP

DATE: MARCH 22, 2018

RE: SUNRISE SENIOR LIVING

| have been requested to prepare a memorandum on behalf of Sunrise Senior Living and
in cooperation with land owner Vision Real Estate Partners, for its proposal in the Borough
of Mountain Lakes, New Jersey. As you know, Sunrise proposes an assisted living facility
at 1 Bloomfield Avenue, known as Block 118.04, Lot 2.01 and consisting of approximately
5.87 acrest.

The project was referenced In the Borough’s 2016 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan

(“Housing Plan”). The Plan noted that the development of the assisted living facllity would
provide up to 120 beds as welt as certain credits toward the Borough's affordable housing
ohligation.

The purpose of this memo is to 1) provide SUGGESTED conditional use standards for an
assisted living facility; and 2) raise issues with respect to certain potential non-
conformances with various sections in the Borough's Land Development Ordinance.

Allowing for assisted living facliities as a conditional use In the OL-2 zone would permit the
Borough to implement the Housing Plan. We suggest the following language and minimum
standards.

PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE STANDARDS

ASSISTED LIVING RESIDENCE. Assisted living facilities are permitted as a conditional
use in the OL-2 zone district subject to the following conditions:

A, DEFINITION:

i. Assisted living residence means a facility licensed by the New Jersey
Department of Health and Senior Services fo provide suite-style housing and
congregate dining and to assure that assisted living services are available
when needed for four or more adult persons uswelated to the proprietor.

125 Hell Mile Road, Suite 200 « Red Bank, New Jersey 07701 » Office: 732933.2715 » Faxe 732.933.2601 + Cell: 732.435.6400

E-mail: ccofonef@cefoncoonsulting com » wwwicofoneconsulting oom




CHRISTINE A. COFONE, PP, AICP
Principal

CoroNE CONSULTING GROUP, LLC

Suite units offer, at a minimum, one unfurnished room, a bathroom, a wet
bar and a lockable door on the unit entrance.

B. LICENSING
ii. The facility should be licensed by the N.J. Department of Community Affairs
as a Class C rooming and boarding home or by the N.J. Department of
Health as an assisted living residence.

C. AGE RESTRICTION
. The assisted living facility shall limit residents to persons who are at least
fifty-five (55) years of age, unless they have a memory impairment condition.

D. MAXIMUM PERMITTED REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ZONE
iv. Height: 3 stories or 50 ft. whichever is less. A single architectural tower
element is permitted with a maximum height of 60 ft. and 1,000 sq. ft.
V. Building Coverage (%): 30%
vi. Improved Coverage (%): 60%

E. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS
vii. Minimum Lot Size: The lot for such facility shall contain a minimum area of
five (5) acres.
viil. Minimum Lot Depth: 400 .
ix. Minimum Lot Frontage: 350 ft.
X. Minimum Front Setback: 50 ft.
. Minimum Side Setback: 50 ft.
Xii. Minimum Rear Setback: 100 ft.

F. SUPPLEMENTARY REQUIREMENTS

Xiii. Minimum Parking Requirements: 1 space for each 2 dwelling units.

Xiv. Parking Setbacks shall be 20 ft. except when abutting residential areas or
zones, in which case Side and Rear Parking Setbacks shall be 100 ft.

XV, There shall be a 100 ft. landscape buffer abutting residential areas or zones.

xvi.  An existing impervious area, including but not limited to an access drive, can

" remain within the 100 . landscaped buffer area if no modifications are made

to the existing impervious area.

G. OCCUPANCY STANDARDS
xvil. Occupancy standards for assisted living residences are pursuant fo N.J.A.C.
5:80-26.4 and N.J.S.A. 26:2H-12.16(b):

195 Half Mile Road, Suite 200 « Red Bank, New Jersey 07701 » Office: 732.933.2715 » Fax: 732.933.2601 » Cell: 732.430.6400

E-mail: ccofone@cofoneconsulting.com » www.cofoneconsulting.com




CurisTINE A. COFONE, PP, AICP
Principal

CoFONE CONSULTING GROUP, LLC
a. 10% of the beds shall be set-aside for low and moderate-income

residents.

POTENTIAL AREAS OF NON-COMPLIANCE IN THE EXISTING LAND DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE

Buffers

§245-15 Supplementary Use Regulations, sub-section |. Office and Light Industrial Zones
require: '

1. A planted buffer, measured 100 ft. deep from the property boundary, shall be
provided within any OL-1 or OL-2 Zone along any lot line abutting a residential area
or zone. The Plant materials and the planting design shall be in accordance with
criteria for such plantings in Chapter 208, Subdivision of Land and Site Plan
Review,

We have provided a conditional use standard that allows an existing private
driveway to bisect the 100 ft. buffer.

Maximum building coverage:

§245-15 Supplementary Use Regulations, sub-section 1(4). Office and Light Industrial
Zones require:

4. The maximum size of an undivided building or a building section which is offset from
other building sections at least 20 ft. shall not exceed 80,000 sq. ft. of building coverage.

We propose to increase the “shall not exceed” limit to 90,000 sq. ft. since the
proposed 3-story building is around 83,400 sq. ft., or seek clarification up front that
this shall not apply.

Fences

§245-15 Supplementary Use Regulations, sub-section P, Office and Light Industrial Zones
requires:

(1)  InZones A, B, OL-1 and OL-2:
a. No fence is permitted in a front yard.

195 Half Mile Road, Suite 200 + Red Bank, New Jersey 07701 » Office: 732.933.2715 » Fax: 732.933.2601 » Cell: 732.439.6400

E-mail; ecolone@cofoneconsulting.com * wiwwecofoneconsultingcom




CHRISTINE A. COFONE, PP, AICP
Principal

CoroNE CONSULTING (GROUP, LLC

The plan has a fence in the front yard along Bloomfield Avenue in order to provide a
safe outdoor space for the residents.

We suggest:

(1)  InZones A, B, OL-1 and OL-2:
a. No fance is permitted in a front yard, except for along Bloomfield Avenue.

Signs

§245-17(C)(3) regulates signs in the OL-1 and OL-2 zones. |t requires sign compliance
with Subsections A, B, C and D(2)(a)[3] through [7], which have certain restrictions on size,
height, number, etc.

We propose adding the following to §245-17(C)(3).

(a) Two freestanding signs no more than 16 sq. ft. in size shall be permitted.

{b) No portion of any freestanding sign shall be more than 6 ft. above finished
grade.

(c) All other standards contained in §245-17(C) shall apply.

Regarding occupancy standards for assisted living residences:

New Jersey law requires assisted living residences to reserve beds for use by Medicaid-
eligible persons. Under N.J.S.A. 26:2H-12.16, a new assisted living residence shall
reserve 10% of its total bed compliment for use by Medicaid-eligible persons. The assisting
living facility shall achieve this 10% utilization within three years of licensure to operate and
shall maintain this level of utilization thereafter. In light of this statutorily mandated
requirement, an assisted living residence is required, by law, to comply with the 10%
affordable set-aside in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4.

195 Half Mile Road, Suite 200 « Red Bank, New Jersey 07701 » Office: 732.933.2715 » Fax: 732,933.2601 « Cell: 732.439.6400

E-mail: ecofone@eofoneconsulting com » www.cofoneconsulting com




Curustivg A. COFONE, PP, ALCP
Principal

CoronNE CONSULTING GROUP, LLC
PLANNING MEMO

TO: MARC D. POLICASTRO, ESQ.

FROM: CHRISTHNE A. NAZZARO-COFONE, AICP, PP

DATE: MARCH 22, 2018

RE: SUNRISE SENIOR LIVING

| have been requested to prepare a memorandum on behalf of Sunrise Senior Living and
in cooperation with land owner Vision Real Estate Pariners, for its proposal in the Borough
of Mountain Lakes, New Jersey. As you know, Sunrise proposes an assisted living facility
at 1 Bloomfteld Avenue, known as Block 118.04, Lot 2.01 and consisting of approximately
5.87 acrest.

The project was referenced in the Borough's 2016 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan
(“Housing Plan"). The Plan noted that the development of the assisted living facility woutld
provide up to 120 beds as well as certain credits toward the Borough's affordabie housing
obligation.

The purpose of this memo is to 1) provide SUGGESTED conditionai use standards for an
assisted living facllity; and 2) raise issues with respect to certain potential non-
conformances with various sections in the Borough's Land Development Ordinance.

Allowing for assisted living facilities as a conditional use in the OL-2 zone would permit the
Borough to implement the Housing Plan. We suggest the following language and minimum
standards.

PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE STANDARDS

ASSISTED LIVING RESIDENCE, Assisted living facilities are permitted as a conditionat
use in the OL-2 zone district subject to the following conditions:

A. DEFINITION:

i. Assisted living residence means a facilily licensed by the New Jersey
Department of Health and Senior Services to provide suite-style housing and
congregate dining and to assure that assisted living services are available
when needed for four or more adult persons unrelated to the proprietor.

195 Half Mile Road, Suite 200+ Red Bank, New Jersey 07701 + Office; 732.933.2715 ¢ Fax: 732,933.2601 » Cell: 732439660

E-mail: ccofone@onfoneconsuling com » www.cofoneconsulting com




Appendix E — OL-2 Conforming Lot Size Parcels

Subject Site (B 118.04,£201) [ | Propary Parcel
1 l‘

Conbrming 5ac OL-2 in-i‘

1) 420 BLVD, Block 6, Lot 9

2) 40 Pocono Rd, Block 6, Lot 14

3) 145 Route 46, Block 116, Lot 3.01
4) 49 Bloomfield, Block 118.04, Lot 1
5) 1 Bloomfield, Biock 118.04, Lot 2.02



Appendix F — Site Photos

Site Visit: 1 Bloomfield Avenue
Block 118.04, Lot 2.01
Mountain Lakes, NJ

Date: May 29, 2018

B GRS 5 A
1. Rear left corner of property view 2. Rear property line facing neighboring
residential development

Eastern view of property looking at existing
retaining wall



Appendix G — Environmental Map

Source. NJGIN, Highiands Counci NOAR = | :

IFeet
0 112.5 225 450
777} Wetlands Severe Slopes (16%+) {___| Block 118.4, Lot 2.01
@ Ftood Hazard Prone Bl Severe Slopes {26%+) i::_! Municipal Boundary










*|I9UNOY 0] SUOCIIEPUSWIWODAI

apinoad 01 J9pJo Ul suwsiueyodoaw
uonejyuawajdwi jenuajod possosse
pue jusawg|g bHuisnoH palenjeA]

‘|lesodo.d
BuInI  JolUdg  9sHuUNg  9lenjead
0} Jou